
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

March 5, 2013 9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Gary Lewis 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Retirement of Jim Smith with 35 years of Service as Senior WWTP Operator at the 

Waste Water Treatment Plant 
 

B) Director of Public Safety Wendell Turner presents to Council a Police Department 
program called “Crime Free Housing” 

 
C) Fire Department to recognize Public Works Personnel for their efforts in assisting the 

FD in the February 14th grain bin rescue 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 02-19-2013 Council Minutes  
b) 02-19-2013 Executive Session Minutes 

 
B) Consideration of a Motion to approve 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-01: An 

Ordinance Amending Certain Sections of Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages). 
 

C) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a) Licensee:  Cleyon Turner (Changing Managers) 

DBA:  The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant #1837 
Location:  201 Henry Blvd 
Type of Alcohol License:  Beer, Wine & Liquor by the Drink 
Type of Business:  Restaurant 

 
6. Consideration of a Motion to approve request to utilize Sole Source purchasing method 

for two (2) decorative, mast arm traffic signal poles to be used to replace the existing 
traffic signal poles at the intersection of W. Main St. @ S. College St.  Purchase is 
associated with planned intersection improvements at this same location. 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2013-04: A Resolution approving the 
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Statesboro and 
Bulloch County. 

 



 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion for the City of Statesboro to commit to $150,000.00 if the City 
of Statesboro receives a CDBG grant in the amount of $500,000.00 for the Gordon Street 
project. 

 
9. Consideration of a Motion to approve/deny Resolution 2013-05: A Resolution 

authorizing the waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (Pilot) by the Statesboro Housing 
Authority to the City of Statesboro for the 2012 Tax Year. 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve the remaining 1% bonus to the employees of the 
City of Statesboro.     
 

11. Other Business from City Council 
A) Luetta Moore Trail 

 
12. Public Comments (General) 

 
13. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
  CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on February 19 , 2013 at 6:00 pm in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall Present were Mayor Joe R. Brannen, Council Members Phil 
Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Frank 
Parker, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, City Engineer Robert Cheshire 
and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody. Absent was Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt. 
  
 
Mayor Brannen recognized the Leadership Bulloch team. They were visiting the Council 
Meeting as part of the graduation requirements. 
 
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman John Riggs 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
 Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
         a) 02-06-2013 Council Minutes 
         b) 02-06-2013 Work session minutes 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-02: An Ordinance 
to annex property of VALNOC, LLC into the City of Statesboro municipal limits. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-03: An Ordinance 
to annex property of Wendell and Miriam Hodges into the City of Statesboro municipal 
limits 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-04: An Ordinance to 
annex properties of the City of Statesboro into the City of Statesboro municipal limits 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve a Special Event Permit for Jamie Toms: 
Zeta Fall Alpha Semi-Formal- The Belle House 
 
Notification of alcohol license application: 

a) Licensee: Mohammad Khan 
     DBA: Uncle Dave’s Inc. DBA Don Corleone’s Pizza 
     Location: 200 Lanier Drive Suite 5 
     Type of Alcohol License: Retail Beer & Wine by the drink 
      Type of Business: Restaurant 
 



 
 

Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-01: An Ordinance 
Amending Certain Sections of Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic 
Beverages) 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve 1st reading of 
Ordinance 2013-01: An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections of Chapter 6 of the Statesboro 
Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages). Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 Consideration of a Motion to approve “Vehicle for Hire” 

A) D W Yellow Cab 2 – Delorise Flonory (Owner- New Business) 
 
The applicant requested the item to be removed from the agenda until a later date. 
No action was taken on this item. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Award of Contract to Tucker Utilities, Inc. in the 
amount of $26,643.00 to make drainage improvements to a section of N. College St. (see 
attached location map).  The improvements are to be funded by 2007 SPLOST. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to award the contract to 
Tucker Utilities, Inc. in the amount of $26,643.00 to make drainage improvements to a section of 
N. College St. (see attached location map).  The improvements are to be funded by 2007 
SPLOST. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to adopt the manual for procurement card procedures for the 
City of Statesboro 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to adopt the manual for 
procurement card procedures for the City of Statesboro. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to adopt the manual for purchasing procedures for the City of 
Statesboro 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to adopt the manual for 
purchasing procedures for the City of Statesboro.  Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 Other Business from City Council 
 
City Manager Frank Parker asked for consideration of a motion to extend the contract for another 
3 years for Judge Keith Barber. Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman 
Lewis to approve the 3 year extension contract for Judge Keith Barber. Councilman Boyum, 
Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
Public Safety Director Wendell Turner thanked the Statesboro and Bulloch County Fire 
Departments for their efforts in the rescue of 2 people trapped in a grain bin and a fire at the 
Southern States Cotton Gin.  
 
City Manager Frank Parker made a suggestion that attendees going to the GMA Convention, set 
for June in Savannah, to only reserve rooms for Saturday and Sunday night. Council did not 
object to the suggestion.  
 
At 6:22pm, Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to enter into an 
Executive Session on “Personnel Matters” with a 5 minute break. Councilman Boyum, Riggs, 
Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
Present were Council Members: Phil Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance. Also 
present were City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart and Director of Human 
Resource Jeff Grant. 
 
Mayor Brannen called the regular session back to order at 7:06 p.m. with no action taken.  
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to adjourn. Councilman 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 
vote. The meeting was adjourned at 7:06 pm. 





















CITY OF STATESBORO. GEORGIA

APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE

DArE oF AppLrcA TrcN 211212013 NEw RENE*AL

TYPE OF BUSINESS TO BE OPERATED:
RETAIL BEER & WINE PACKAGED ONLY $I,25O.OO

RETAIL BEER & WINE BY THE DRINK $I,25O.OO
X BEER, WINE & LIQUOR BY DRINK $3,750.00

WHOLESALE LICENSE $1,000.00
APPLICATION FEE - PACKAGED SALES $ 15O.OO

APPLICATION FEE - POURING SALES $ I5O.OO

App,,rcANrs FULL NAME cleyon Turner

owNERSNAME GMRI, Inc.

DBA (BUSIN"s, no*r)The Olive Garden I

BUSTNESSADDRESS 201 Henry Blvd., Statesboro, GA 30458

BUSINESSMAILING ADDRESS 
Attn: Licensing, PO Box 695016, Orlando, FL 32869-5016

BUSTNESS TELEPHONE # 407-245-4000

APPLICANTS HOME ADDRESS

APPLICANTS HOME PHONE #

ARE YoU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES? X YNS NO

HAVEYOUREVERBEENARRESTEDFORANYTHING? YES X NO

IS THE APPLICANT THE OWNER OF THE BUSINESS? YES - 
'*

rF No. *HAT rs youR TrrLE rN THE BUSTNES.? Manager

HOW MANY PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, ETC. ARE IIWOLVED IN THE BUSINESS 1

PLEASE LIST BELOW:
G[/Rl, tnc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Darden Reslaurants, Inc., which owns '100% of GMRI, Inc. stock.

tr**rk*t!**trt!***'ttr7t***r(lrtr*rk*:k*JrtrJr**Jr***r(***tr**'tJr:lrr*******trtrt!lrtr****rr'!rr****Ltr******lrrl*Jrr(*rr

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: APPROVED DENIED (REASON ATTACHED)

Police Department

Community Development

Fire Department

Building Official





RESOLUTION 2013-04: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the State of 

Georgia authorizes governmental units and agencies such as the County and the City to enter into 

contracts for a period not exceeding fifty (50) years for joint services, for the provision of 

services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment which the parties are 

authorized by law to undertake and provide; and,  

WHEREAS, upon approval of a November 2011 referendum, the voters of Bulloch 

County authorized the County to exercise the redevelopment powers under the Georgia 

Redevelopment Powers Law, which powers include the establishment of tax allocation districts; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the County has prepared a plan to redevelop properties in an area 

designated as Tax Allocation District #1 which is located proximate to Interstate 16 and U.S 

Highway 301 in unincorporated Bulloch County;   

WHEREAS, the County and the Development Authority of Bulloch County, a public 

body corporate and politic created by an activating resolution dated July 13, 1993, adopted 

pursuant to O.C.G.A. 36-62-1 have acquired property for future industrial uses within Tax 

Allocation District #1, which property is located within the southeast quadrant of the District, 

proximate to Interstate 16 and U.S Highway 301 in unincorporated Bulloch County; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the public health, welfare, and safety of all 

citizens of Bulloch County including the citizens of the City of Statesboro that the development 

which takes place within the District is provided with sufficient water and sewer facilities to 

provide for adequate non-agricultural irrigation, potable water, fire protection, and wastewater 

collection and treatment; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 

 
Section 1.  That the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro shall enter into the 

Intergovernmental Agreement, which is attached to this Resolution as Government Exhibit A, 
with the Bulloch County Board of Commissioners; 



Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of 
adoption.  
 
                                              Adopted this ___  day of ________, 2013 
 
                                                                                   CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 

                                                                                                                       
_____________________________ 

                                                                              By: Joe R. Brannen, Mayor   
 
 

                                                                                                                       
_____________________________ 

                                                                                    Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk               
 

























































































 
 
RESOLUTION 2013-05: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WAIVER OF ANY 
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT) BY THE STATESBORO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
TO THE CITY OF STATESBORO FOR THE 2012 TAX YEAR 
 
 
  THAT WHEREAS, the City of Statesboro has previously established the Statesboro 
Housing Authority to provide subsidized rental housing to low- and moderate-income citizens; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority is exempt from property taxes but is 
required to make a payment in lieu of taxes  (PILOT) based upon the amount of rental income 
during the fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, in previous years the Mayor and City Council have annually waived the 
requirement to make this payment in lieu of taxes in order for the Housing Authority to utilize 
that money on  capital improvements and/or maintenance on its facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority has asked that the payment in lieu of taxes 
be waived again for the 2012 tax year, with the $16,716.06 to be used for maintenance on the 
facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority has provided evidence that prior PILOT 
funds that were waived have been used for maintenance on the facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Housing Authority and the City of Statesboro enjoy an 
excellent working relationship, and the Mayor and City Council wish to assist the Authority in its 
maintenance efforts; 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 

 
Section 1.  That the  “Payment in Lieu of Taxes” in the amount of $16,716.06 due to the 

City for the 2012Tax Year from the Statesboro Housing Authority is hereby waived so that the 
funds can be used for additional maintenance on the Authority’s facilities. 
 

  Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after 
its date of adoption. 
 

Passed and adopted this ____ day of March, 2013. 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
                                                                                                   BY: ________________________ 
                                                                                                                  Joe R. Brannen, Mayor 
 
                                                                                               
                                                                                               ATTEST: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                 Sue Starling, City Clerk 




























	1-03-05-2013 Council Agenda
	2-02-19-2013 council minutes
	3-2013-01 new alcohol ordinance for packet
	4-2013- alcohol application
	5-2013-W  Main St  @ S  College St  Intersection Improvements Decorative Poles
	6-2013-04 RESOLUTION 2013-04 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	7-2013-Exhibit-A- intergrvernmental agreement
	8-2013-05 Resolution- Housing Auth lieu of taxes
	9-2013-Housing Authority

